
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act - Persons needing special accommodations (including auxiliary communicative aids and services) for this 
meeting, should contact Staci Coons at 801-538-4718, giving her at least five working days notice.   

 

 
Utah Wildlife Board Meeting 

 November 28, 2023, Eccles Wildlife Education Center 
1157 South Waterfowl Way, Farmington, Utah 
The meeting can be viewed live at https://youtube.com/live/h_sBblEgSto                         

 
Tuesday, November 28, 2023 – 9:00 am 
 
1.  Approval of Agenda                                   ACTION 
     – Randy Dearth, Chairman 

 
2.  Approval of Minutes                              ACTION 
    – Randy Dearth, Chairman 
 
3.  Old Business/Action Log                                                                CONTINGENT 
     – Gary Nielson, Vice-Chairman  
 
4.  DWR Update                                                                           INFORMATIONAL 
     – J. Shirley, DWR Director 
 
5. Harvest Survey Amendments – R657-5                                        ACTION 
       – Kent Hersey, Big Game Projects Coordinator 
 
6. Pronghorn Augmentation Sites                                                          ACTION 
       – Kent Hersey, Big Game Projects Coordinator  
 
7.  Hunt Structure/Research Proposal                                    ACTION 
       – Kent Hersey, Big Game Projects Coordinator 
 
8.  Emerging Technologies – Muzzleloader and Archery Amendments                          ACTION 
       – Blair Stringham, Wildlife Migration Initiative Coordinator 
 
9. Dedicated Hunter Program Amendments                                    ACTION 
       – Bryan Christensen, Dedicated Hunter Coordinator 
 
10.  LOA Rule Amendments                                                  ACTION 
       – Chad Wilson, Public Wildlife/Private Lands Coordinator 
 
11.  LOA Permit Recommendations                                                ACTION 
       – Chad Wilson, Public Wildlife/Private Lands Coordinator  
 
12.  CWMU Permit Recommendations                      ACTION 
       – Chad Wilson, Public Wildlife/Private Lands Coordinator 
 
13.  Landowner Association Advisory Committee Members                                           ACTION 
       – Covy Jones, Wildlife Program Chief 
 
14.  Deep Creek Elk Unit                          ACTION 
      – Dax Mangus, Big Game Program Coordinator 
 
15.  Book Cliffs/Little Creek South Bison Hunt Variance Request                     ACTION 
      – Rusty Robinson, Once-in-a-Lifetime Species Coordinator 
 
 
 

-continued- 

https://youtube.com/live/h_sBblEgSto


 
 
 
 
16.  Corrections to the Approved Prohibited and Controlled List Changes  
       under R657-3c and R657-13                                   ACTION 
      – Craig Walker, Assistant Chief of Fisheries 
     
17.  Other Business                CONTINGENT 
      – Randy Dearth, Chairman 
 
 



 1 

                                  Draft 11/28/2023 
Wildlife Board Motions 

 
Following is a summary of Wildlife Board motions directing the Division to take action and the response to date: 
 
Fall 2023 – Target Date – Special Use Permits on WMA’s – Guides and Outfitters – Non-consumptive user fee 
  
 MOTION:   I move that we ask the division to look into Guides and Outfitters obtaining special 
use permits on WMA’s and to look at implementing a fee for non-consumptive users. This is to be placed 
on the Action Log. 
 

Motion made by: Randy Dearth 
 Assigned to: Blair Stringham 
 Action: Under Study 
 Placed on Action Log: August 25, 2022 
 
Fall 2024 – Target Date – Increase Trapping Fee for Non-residents  

 
 MOTION:   I move that we ask the Division to look into a trap fee increase for non-residents 
for 2024. This is to be placed on the Action Log. 

  
Motion made by: Karl Hirst 

 Assigned to: Darren DeBloois 
 Action: Under Study 
 Placed on Action Log: January 3, 2023 
 
Fall 2024 – Target Date – Mandatory Tooth Reporting 

 
 MOTION:     I move that we ask the Division to look into mandatory tooth reporting. This is to be 
placed on the Action Log. 

Motion made by: Karl Hirst 
Assigned to: Dax Mangus 
Action: Under study 
Placed on Action Log: May 4, 2023 

 
Fall  2024 – Target Date – CWMU Recommendations Committee 
 

MOTION:   I move that we ask the division to form a CWMU Recommendations Committee to 
review the rule and bring recommendations back to the board in June 2024.  The committee should 
consider if the rule is equitable for both the public and the private parties.  It needs to be an incentive 
based program to encourage CWMU’s to fulfill antlerless harvest. Tools need to be in place to encourage 
CWMU operators and the division to obtain necessary harvest for unit objectives. The rule needs to 
address non-contiguous lands and set requirements for trade lands – land traded needs to be comparable 
to be fair to both the public and the operator. Trade lands need to be posted with a common sign such 
that the public can easily recognize it as such.  If public tags increase or decrease then CWMU tags 
should do the same. This is to be placed on the Action Log. 

Motion made by: Randy Dearth 
Assigned to: Chad Wilson 
Action: Under study 
Placed on Action Log: May 4, 2023 
 



 2 

 
 
 
 
 

Fall  2025 – Target Date – “Destination Water bodies” List 
 

MOTION: I move that we ask the Division to create a list of “Destination water bodies” throughout 
the state.  This list will determine which fishery management plans are presented statewide and which 
may be presented to only the local RAC.  This is to be placed on the action log. 

Motion made by: Kent Johnson 
Assigned to: Randy Oplinger 
Action: Under study 
Placed on Action Log: September 21, 2023 
 



Utah Wildlife Board Meeting 
 September 21, 2022 

Eccles Wildlife Education Center 
1157 S. Waterfowl Way, Farmington, Utah 

The Board Meeting will stream live at https://youtube.com/live/0nnGmMWGNwE 
AGENDA 

Thursday, September 29, 2022 Board Meeting 9:00 am 
 

1.  Approval of Agenda 
– Randy Dearth, Chairman 
 

ACTION 

2.  Approval of Minutes 
– Randy Dearth, Chairman 
 

ACTION 

3.  Old Business/Action Log 
– Gary Nielson, Vice-Chairman 

CONTINGENT 

4.  DWR Update 
– J. Shirley, DWR Director 
 

INFORMATIONAL 

5.  2023-25 Fishing Recommendations  
– Randy Oplinger, Assistant Aquatic Section Chief 

ACTION 

6.  Private Pond Rule Amendments 
– Randy Oplinger, Assistant Aquatic Section Chief 
 
 
 

ACTION 

7.  Conservation Permit Audit 
      – Kenny Johnson, Administrative Services Section Chief 

 
 

ACTION 

8.  Conservation Permit Annual Report  
      – Covy Jones, Wildlife Section Chief 

 

 

ACTION 

9.  2024 RAC/Board Meeting Dates 
      – Staci Coons, Wildlife Board Coordinator 

 

ACTION 

10.  Other Business 
– Randy Dearth Chairman 

CONTINGENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act - Persons needing special accommodations (including auxiliary communicative aids 
and services) for this meeting, should contact Staci Coons at 801-538-4718, giving her at least five working 



                                  Draft 9/21/2023  
Utah Wildlife Board Meeting 

September 21, 2022, Eccles Wildlife Education Center 
1157 S. Waterfowl Way, Farmington, Utah 

Summary of Motions 
 
 

1) Approval of Agenda (Action) 
 
The following motion was made by Bret Selman, seconded by Kent Johnson and passed 
unanimously. 
 

MOTION: I move that we approve the agenda. 
 

2) Approval of Minutes (Action) 
 
The following motion was made by Kent Johnson, seconded by Bret Selman and passed 
unanimously. 
 

MOTION: I move that we approve the minutes of the August 17, 2023 
Wildlife Board Meeting as submitted. 

 
3)  2024 Fishing Recommendations (Action) 
 

The following motion was made by Gary Nielson, seconded by Bryce Thurgood and passed 
unanimously.  
  

MOTION:  I move that we approve the 2023-2025 Fishing 
Recommendations as presented by the Division.  

 
4) Private Pond Rule Amendments (Action) 

 
The following motion was made by Bryce Thurgood, seconded by Paula Richmond and passed 
unanimously.  
  

MOTION:   I move that we approve the Private Pond Rule Amendments as 
presented by the Division.  

 
The following motion was made by Kent Johnson, seconded by Gary Nielson and passed 
unanimously.  This is to be placed on the Action Log.   
  

MOTION:   I move that we ask the Division to create a list of “destination 
water bodies” throughout the state.  This list will determine which fishery 
management plans are presented statewide, and which may be presented to 
only the local RAC.  This is to be placed on the Action Log.   

 
 



 5) Conservation Permit Audit (Action) 
 
The following motion was made by Wade Heaton, seconded by Kent Johnson and passed 
unanimously.  
  

MOTION:   I move that we accept the Conservation Permit Audit as 
presented by the Division.   
 

6) Conservation Permit Annual Report (Action) 
 
The following motion was made by Paula Richmond, seconded by Bryce Thurgood and passed 
unanimously.  
  

MOTION:   I move that we accept the Conservation Permit Annual Report 
as presented by the Division.   
 

  7) 2024 RAC/Board Meeting Dates (Action) 
 
The following motion was made by Bret Selman, seconded by Gary Nielson and passed 
unanimously.  
  

MOTION:   I move that we accept the 2024 RAC/Board Meeting Dates as 
presented by the Division.   

   
 
 



Utah Wildlife Board Meeting 
September 21, 2023, Eccles Wildlife Education Center 

1157 S. Waterfowl Way, Farmington, Utah 
Attendance 

 
Wildlife Board RAC Chairs  

Randy Dearth – Chair Wade Heaton - virtual Central – Brock McMillan 
Gary Nielson – Vice-Chair Kent Johnson Northeastern – Eric Major  
Mike Canning – Exec Secretary Paula Richmond Northern – Brad Buchanan  
 Bret Selman Southeastern – Eric Luke 
 Bryce Thurgood Southern – Kevin Bunnell 
    

Division Personnel 
Ashley Green Mike Christensen Chris Penne  
Justin Shannon Rusty Robinson   
Kenny Johnson Randy Oplinger   
Sarah Scott Craig Walker   
Chris Wood Lindy Varney   
Drew Cushing Ben Nadolski   
Staci Coons Charles Lyons   
Paige Wiren Devin Christensen   
    
    
    
    
    
    

Public Present 
Troy Justensen Ken Strong   
Steve Gottfredson Jeff Salt  
Michael Kennedy   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
    
    

  



 
Utah Wildlife Board Meeting 

September 21, 2021, Eccles Wildlife Education Center 
1157 S. Waterfowl Way, Farmington, Utah 

https://youtube.com/live/0nnGmMWGNwE 

00:04:26 Chairman Dearth called the meeting to order. The Board and RAC introduced 
themselves.  Chairman Dearth noted that Wade Heaton was attending the meeting 
virtually, and that Gary Nielson would arrive late to the meeting.   

00:06:34 1)  Approval of Agenda (Action) 
The following motion was made by, Bret Selman seconded by Kent Johnson and 
passed unanimously. 
MOTION: I move that we approve the agenda. 

00:07:04 2)  Approval of Minutes (Action) 
The following motion was made by Kent Johnson, seconded by Bret Selman and 
passed unanimously. 
MOTION: I move that we approve the minutes of the August 17, 2023 
Wildlife Board Meeting as submitted. 

00:07:37 
 
 

3)  Old Business/Action Log (Contingent) 
Chairman Dearth recognized the passing of Miles Moretti.  Deputy Director Mike 
Canning spoke about Mr. Moretti’s lifelong career in Western natural resources 
conservation. 

00:09:46 4)  DWR Update (Informational) 
Deputy Director Canning gave updates on the Administrative Services, Aquatics, 
Habitat, Law Enforcement, Outreach and Wildlife sections. 

00:13:49 
 
 
 

5)  2024 Fishing Recommendations (Action) 
Assistant Aquatic Section Chief Randy Oplinger shared a recommendation that was 
in addition to the changes that were presented in the proposal video posted in the 
meeting materials on the Division’s website.   

00:15:54 Board/RAC Questions   
There were no questions from the Board or RAC chairs.  

00:16:10 Public Input 
Deputy Director Canning shared the online public input.  

00:16:43 
 

RAC Recommendations   
All RACs unanimously passed the rule amendments.  



00:18:44 Public Comments   
Public comments were accepted at this time. 

00:33:31 Division Clarification 
There was no clarification from the Division.  

00:34:00 Board Discussion   
The Board asked if the Division is monitoring spearfishing in Utah.  Paula 
Richmond commented on the scope of athleticism that spearfishing requires.   
The following motion was made by Gary Nielson, seconded by Bryce Thurgood and 
passed unanimously.   
MOTION:  I move that we approve the 2023-2025 Fishing 
Recommendations as presented by the Division.   

00:37:36 6)  Private Pond Rule Amendments (Action) 
Assistant Aquatic Section Chief Randy Oplinger provided additional information 
that supplemented the proposal video posted in the meeting materials on the 
Division’s website.   

00:40:01 Board/RAC Questions   
The Board asked for clarification on what fish species were being added in the 
proposal.   

 

00:41:11 Public Comments 

Public comments were accepted at this time. 

00:44:54 Public Input 

Deputy Director Canning shared the online public input.  

00:45:55 RAC Recommendations   
All RACs passed the plan.  The Central Region RAC made an additional motion to 
request that the Division make future presentations for individual water bodies.   

00:48:35 Board Discussion   
The following motion was made by Bryce Thurgood, seconded by Paula Richmond 
and passed unanimously.   
MOTION:   I move that we approve the Private Pond Rule Amendments 
as presented by the Division. 
The following motion was made by Kent Johnson, seconded by Gary Nielson and 
passed unanimously.  This is to be placed on the Action Log.  



MOTION:   I move that we ask the Division to created a list of 
“destination water bodies” throughout the state.  This list will determine which 
fishery management plans are presented statewide, and which may be 
presented only to the local RAC.  This is to be placed on the Action Log.   

 

00:51:28 7)  Conservation Permit Audit 
Administrative Services Section Chief Kenny Johnson gave a presentation on the 
conservation permit audit process.   

00:57:20 Board/RAC Questions   
The Board asked if money from the sale of a permit for a certain species goes to a 
conservation project related to that species.  

00:58:00 Public Input 

There was no public input collected on this agenda item.   

00:58:05 

 

RAC Recommendations   

This agenda item was not presented at the RAC meetings.  

00:58:24 Public Comments   

Public comments were accepted at this time. 

01:00:45 Board Discussion   
The Board commented that the state of Utah is fortunate to have money from this 
program to allocate to conservation efforts.  The Board stated that, despite 
occasional public criticism, the program has a positive impact on natural resources 
conservation.   
The following motion was made by Wade Heaton, seconded by Kent Johnson and 
passed unanimously.   

MOTION:  I move that we approve the Conservation Permit Audit as 
presented by the Division.   

01:03:55 8)  Conservation Permit Annual Report 
Once-in-a-Lifetime Species Coordinator Rusty Robinson gave a presentation titled, 
“Utah’s Conservation Permit Program Annual Report – Fiscal Year 2023.” 

01:13:44 Board/RAC Questions   
The Board asked about an increase in revenue since 2020.  The Board commented 
that each partner organization is populated by people passionate about wildlife 
conservation, and that, although conservation permit tags are subtracted from the 
public draw, all Utah hunters as well as the general public greatly benefit from the 



conservation work that those permit sale dollars go to.   

01:16:160 Board Discussion   
The following motion was made by Paula Richmond, seconded by Bryce Thurgood 
and passed unanimously.   

MOTION:  I move that we accept the Conservation Permit Annual 
Report as presented by the Division.   

01:16:46 9)  2024 RAC/Board Meeting Dates 
Wildlife Board Coordinator Staci Coons presented changes to the 2024 RAC/Board 
meeting dates.   

01:19:08 Board/RAC Questions   

The Board asked where the 2024 meeting dates would be published.   

01:19:46 Board Discussion   
The following motion was made by Bret Selman, seconded by Gary Nielson and 
passed unanimously.   

MOTION:  I move that we approve the 2024 RAC/Board meeting dates 
as presented by the Division.   

01:20:54 10)  Other Business 
Vice-Chairman Gary Nielson gave updates on some Action Log items. 

01:23:53 Meeting adjourned.   

  

  
 
 
 



Regional Advisory Council Meeting 
Summary of Motions 

November 2023 
 

                                              
      1 - Harvest Survey Amendments-R657-5 (Action) 
    
NR, SR, SER, NER 

 MOTION:  I move that we approve Harvest Survey Amendments-R657-5 as 
presented. 

 VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
CR MOTION: To accept the recommendations as a trial year in the DWR recommendations 

proposed. 
 VOTE: Passed 10-1 

    
   2)  Pronghorn Augmentation Sites (Action)                                                                                   

All Regions 
 MOTION:  I move we approve Pronghorn Augmentation Sites as presented. 

VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
 

      3)     Hunt Structure/Research Proposal (Action)                                                                                 
 

NR  MOTION:  I move we push this back to the Mule Deer Committee. 
        VOTE: Passed Unanimous     

CR  MOTION:  To reject the proposal as presented. 
  VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
SR MOTION: To reject the proposal as presented and send the research ideas to the Mule 

Deer Committee to be further vetted. 

  VOTE: Passed 7-2 
SER MOTION: To reject the proposal as presented and send this back to the Mule Deer 

Committee. 
 VOTE: Failed 7-4 

 MOTION: To accept the Division’s proposal as presented. 
 VOTE: Passed 7-4 
NER MOTION: To reject the proposal and defer to the Mule Deer Committee for 

recommendations. 

  VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
    



    4)     Emerging Technologies – Muzzleloader and Archery Amendments (Action)   
             
NR MOTION: I move we approve the recommendations for archery change as  
            presented. 

VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
 
            MOTION: I move we stay neutral on this and let the Wildlife Board make the 
            decision. 
 Died for lack of a second. 
 
           MOTION: I move we accept the Muzzleloader recommendations as presented. 

VOTE: Passed 9-3 
 
CR MOTION: To accept recommendations with the exception of muzzleloader changed so some type 

of scope is allowed (1X) 
 VOTE: Failed 7-5 
 

MOTION: To reject the Divisions recommendations for scopes on muzzleloaders and accept the 
archery recommendation. 

 VOTE: Passed 8-3 
 
SR MOTION: Move that we support removal of minimum arrow and bolt length restrictions. 
 VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
 

MOTION: Move that we support the division’s recommendation as presented to take away scopes 
completely and return to iron sites and peep sites. 

 VOTE: Passed 7-2 
 
SER MOTION: Move to reject the Division’s proposal in regard to optics on muzzleloaders 
 VOTE: Died for lack of second. 
 

MOTION: Move to amend the Division’s proposal for optics on muzzleloader to allow a non-
variable power up to 4X 

 VOTE: Died for lack of second. 
 

MOTION: To accept the Division’s proposal on the arrow and bow lengths recommendations. 
 VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
 
 MOTION: To accept the Division’s proposal to remove scopes from muzzleloaders. 
 VOTE: Passed 8-2 with 1 abstention. 
 
NER MOTION: To reject the proposal as is but ask the Division to recognize Muzzleloader weapon 

types and create a hunt for each specific weapon type without detrimentally affecting wildlife. 
 VOTE: Passed 9-2  
 
 MOTION: To accept the proposal on the arrow and bow lengths recommendations. 
 VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
  
        



  5)      Dedicated Hunter Program Amendments (Action)  
 
NR, SER, NER 
 MOTION:   I move we approve Dedicated Hunter Program Amendments as presented. 

VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
 
CR MOTION: To approve as presented with the exception of paper tags get turned in until electronic 

tagging is available. 
 VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
 
SR MOTION: To accept the recommendations as presented. 

AMENDED MOTION: request the Division to review the ability to purchase hours in the 
Dedicated Hunter program. 

 AMENDED MOTION Passed Unanimous 
 

MOTION: To ask the Division to require that funds collected from the Dedicated Hunter 
program go to projects that benefit deer. 

 VOTE: Failed 5-3 
 
 
  
  6)        LOA Rule Amendments (Action)                                                     

 
NR MOTION:   I move we do not accept removing the public access requirement for LOA to only 

hunt private property.  
 VOTE: Passed 7-6 

 
MOTION: I move we support the Divisions proposal of creating a special drawing for 
landowners on Limited Entry Units not enrolled in the LOA. 
VOTE: Passed Unanimous 

 
MOTION: I move we approve the Divisions proposal to create a general   season landowner 
permit only valid on private property. 
VOTE: Passed Unanimous 

 
CR MOTION: To reject all proposals. 
 VOTE: Passed 7-5 
 
SR, NER 
 MOTION: To accept as presented. 
 VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
 
SER MOTION: TO accept the Division’s recommendation as presented with an amendment that if 

you draw or purchase a permit, you incur a waiting period (on the public drawing) and lose your 
points 

 VOTE: Passed 6-4       
 
 
 



  7)         LOA Permit Recommendations (Action) 
 
 
All Regions 
 MOTION: I move we accept LOA Permit Recommendations as presented. 

VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
 
 
    8)       CWMU Permit Recommendations (Action) 
 
NR MOTION: I move we accept CWMU Permit Recommendations as presented. 
 VOTE: Passed 11-1 
 
CR MOTION: To accept as presented. 
 VOTE: Passed 7-5 
 
SR MOTION: To accept as presented with a modification to approve the Kimberly CWMU elk 

variance request for five bull elk permits. 
 VOTE: Passed Unanimous 
 
SER MOTION: I move we accept CWMU Permit Recommendations as presented. 
 VOTE: Passed 8-1 with 1 abstention. 
 
NER 
 MOTION: To accept as presented with a modification to approve the Kimberly CWMU elk 

variance request for bull elk permits as per the biologists’ permit number recommendation. 
 VOTE: Passed 10-1 
 
 



SPENCER J. COX 
Governor 

DIEDRE M. HENDERSON 
Lieutenant Governor 

 
 
 

 

State of Utah 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

1594 West North Temple, Suite 2110, PO Box 146301, Salt Lake City, UT 84114-6301 
telephone (801) 538-4700 • facsimile (801) 538-4709 • TTY (801) 538-7458 • www.wildlife.utah.gov 

   

 

JOEL FERRY 
Executive Director 

Division of Wildlife Resources 
J. SHIRLEY 

Division Director 
 
 
  

 
 
 
  
 

       
 
 
  

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:        Utah Wildlife Board 
 
FROM:       Dax Mangus, Big Game Coordinator    
 
DATE:   November 16, 2023        
 
SUBJECT:  West Desert, Deep Creek bull elk hunting. 
 
The DWR is requesting an extension to the timeline for the transition of the West 
Desert, Deep Creek unit to a general season, Any Bull unit. 
 
The West Desert, Deep Creek unit is currently managed as a limited entry unit for bull 
elk and managed under the September archery and HAMSS hunting strategy. During 
the statewide elk plan revision in the fall of 2022, the DWR recommended converting 
this unit to a general season Any Bull hunting strategy. A substantial portion of the elk 
habitat on the Deep Creek mountain range is comprised of tribal trust lands belonging to 
the Confederated Tribes of the Goshute Reservation (CTGR). In the Nov./Dec. 2022 
RAC and Wildlife Board meetings the CTGR voiced serious concerns about the 
proposed change. The Wildlife Board voted to delay the transition to Any Bull hunting on 
the Deep Creek unit until the 2024 hunting season. This delay was granted to allow the 
DWR and the GTGR more time to work through concerns and resolve issues. The DWR 
strives to be a good neighbor and partner and wants to have meaningful consultation 
and collaboration with the CTGR. 
 
Despite ongoing efforts by both the DWR and the CTGR, there are still substantial, 
unresolved concerns around the conversion of this unit to Any Bull. The DWR is 
requesting the Wildlife Board grant additional time before conversion of the Deep Creek 
unit for both parties to work through these concerns and find a reasonable path forward. 
If additional time is allotted, the DWR will re-visit bull elk hunting status on the Deep 
Creek unit with the Wildlife Board at the first statewide elk plan mid-plan review. That 
mid-plan review is planned to occur after the 2025 hunting season. 
 
 
 



 
Except otherwise listed, all species are presumed prohibited.  All species not listed will require an assessment before collection, 
importation, or possession will be authorized. 

Noncontrolled Fishes, Mollusks, and Crustaceans 

Common Name Scientific Classification Comments 

Any ornamental aquatic animal species except 
those classified as prohibited   

Any marine aquatic animal species except those 
classified as prohibited   

 

Controlled Fishes 

Common Name Scientific Classification Comments 

Bear Lake Sculpin Cottus extensus  

Bear Lake Whitefish Prosopium abyssicola   

Black Crappie Pomoxis nigromaculatus  

Bluegill Lepomis macrochirus  

Bluehead Sucker Catostomus discobolus  

Bonneville Cisco Prosopium gemmifer  

Bonneville Whitefish Prosopium spilonotus  

Brook Trout Salvelinus fontinalis  

Brown Trout Salmo trutta  

Bullhead (all species) Ameiurus sp  

Burbot Lota lota  

Channel Catfish Ictalurus punctatus  

Common Carp Cyprinus carpio  

Cutthroat Trout Oncorhynchus clarkii  

Desert Sucker Catostomus clarkii  

Fathead Minnow Pimephales promelas  

Flannelmouth Sucker Catostomus latipinnis  

Lake Trout Salvelinus namaycush  

Largemouth Bass Micropterus salmoides  

Least Chub Lotichthys phlegethontis  

Longnose Dace Rhinichthys cataractae  

Mottled Sculpin Cottus bairdii  

Mountain Sucker Catostomus platyrhynchus  

Mountain Whitefish Prosopium williamsoni  

Northern Leatherside Chub Lepidomeda copei  

Northern Pike Esox lucius  

Paiute Sculpin Cottus beldingii  

Rainbow Trout Oncorhynchus mykiss  

Redside Shiner Richardsonius balteatus  



Roundtail Chub Gila robusta  

Smallmouth Bass Micropterus dolomieu  

Southern Leatherside Chub Lepidomeda aliciae  

Speckled Dace Rhinichthys osculus  

Splake Trout Salvelinus namaycush x Salvelinus fontinalis  

Striped Bass Morone saxatilis  

Tiger Muskellunge Esox masquinongy x Exox lucius  

Tiger Trout Salmo trutta x Salvelinus fontinalis  

Utah Chub Gila atraria  

Virgin Spinedace Lepidomeda mollispinis  

Walleye Sander vitreus  

Western Mosquitofish Gambusia affinis  

White Bass Morone chrysops  

White Crappie Pomoxis annularis  

Wiper Morone saxatilis x Morone chrysops  
Yellow Perch Perca flavescens  

 

Prohibited Fishes 

Common Name Scientific Classification Comments 

Alewife Alosa pseudoharengus  

Asian Swamp Eel Monopterus albus  

Bighead Carp Hypophthalmichthys nobilis  

Black Carp Mylopharyngodon piceus  

Bonytail Gila elegans  

Bowfin Amia calva  

Brook Stickleback Culaea inconstans  

[Burbot] [Lota lota]  

Colorado Pikeminnow Ptychocheilus lucius  

Convict Cichlid Amatitlania nigrofasciata  

Eurasian Ruffe Gymnocephalus cernuus  

Flathead Catfish Pylodictis olivaris  

Gar Family Lepisosteidae All species 

Grass Carp (diploid) Ctenopharyngodon idella 

Triploid grass carp 
classified as 
controlled 

Humpback Chub Gila cypha  

Ide Leuciscus idus  

June Sucker Chasmistes liorus  

Piranhas (all species) 

Genus Catoprion, Genus Pristobrycon, Genus 
Pygocentrus, Genus Pygopristis, and Genus 
Serrasalmus All species 



Nile Perch Lates niloticus  

Northern Snakehead Channa argus  

Razorback Sucker Xyrauchen texanus  

Red Bellied Pacu Piaractus brachypomus  

Red Shiner Cyprinella lutrensis  

Round Goby Neogobius melanostomus  

Rudd  Scardinius erythrophthalmus  

Sand Shiner Notropis stramineus  

Sea Lamprey Petromyzon marinus  

Silver Carp Hypophthalmichthys molitrix  

South American parasitic catfish  Family Cetopsidae and Family Trichomycteridae All species 

Tiger Fish Hydrocynus vittatus  

Tench Tinca tinca  

Tilapia 

Genus Coelotilapia, Genus Coptodon, Genus 
Heterotilapia, Genus Oreochromis, and Genus 
Sarotherodon All species 

Virgin River Chub Gila seminuda  

Walking Catfish Clarias batrachus  

Woundfin Plagopterus argentissimus  

Zander Sander lucioperca  

All fish species that are not listed as noncontrolled, controlled, or prohibited are presumed prohibited 
 

Controlled Mollusks 

Common Name Scientific Classification Comments 

Ambersnails  Genus Oxiloma, Genus Catinella and Genus Succinea All species 

Brown hive Euconulus fulvus  

Collumns and Daggers Genus Columella, Genus Pupilla and Genus Pupoides All species 

Creeping ancylid Ferrissia rivularis  

Desert tryonia Tryonia porrecta  

Freshwater clams  
Genus Musculium, Genus Pisidium, and Genus 
Sphaerium All species 

Gems  Genus Hawaiia and Genus Ogaridaiscus All species 

Glass Snails  Genus Glyphyalinia and Genus Nesovitrea All species 

Glosses  Genus Zonitoides All species 

Green river Pebblesnail Fluminicola coloradensis  

Mexican coil Helicodiscus eigenmanni  

Mountain snails  Genus Oreohelix All species 

Mud Amnicola Amnicola limosus  



Physas  Genus Aplexa, Genus Physa and Genus Physella All species 

Rams-horns and Gyros 
Genus Gyraulus, Genus Helisoma, Genus Menetus, 
Genus Planorbella and Genus Promentus All species 

Rocky mountain duskysnail Colligyrus greggi  

Small Spot Disks Genus Disk All species 

Snagletooths and Vertigo  Genus Gastrocopta and Genus Vertigo All species 

Springsnails Genus Pyrgulopsis  All species 

Valvatas  Genus Valvata  All species 

Western Glass-Snail Vitrina pellucida  

Western pearlshell Margaritifera falcata  

Floater Genus Anodonta All species 

Pondsnails and Marshsnails 
Genus Galba, Genus Lymnaeasp and Genus 
Stagnicola All species 

Spruce snail Microphysula ingersolli  

Vallonias Genus Vallonia All species 
 

Prohibited Mollusks 

Common Name Scientific Classification Comments 
Asian Clam Corbicula fluminea  

Channeled Apple Snail Pomacea canaliculata  

Brown Garden Snail Cornu asperum  

Cellar Glass-Snail Oxychilus cellarius  

Chinese Mystery Snail Cipangopaludina chinensis  

Decollate Snail Rumina decollata  

Faucet Snail Bithynia tentaculata  

Giant Floater Pyganodon grandis  

Giant Gardenslug Limax maximus  

Golden Mussel Limnoperna fortunei  

Gray Fieldslug Deroceras reticulatum  

New Zealand Mud Snail Potamopyrgus antipodarum  

Paper Pondshell Lymnaea stagnalis  

Quagga Mussel Dreissena rostriformis  

Red Rim Melania Melanoides tuberculata  

Southern Flatcoil Polygyra cereolus  

Veined Rapa Whelk Rapana venosa  

Zebra Mussel Dreissena polymorpha  

All mollusk species that are not listed as noncontrolled, controlled, or prohibited are presumed prohibited 
 

Controlled Crustaceans 



Common Name Scientific Classification Comments 

Brine Shrimp Genus Artemia All species 

Northern (Virile) Crayfish Faxonius virilis  

Pilose Crayfish Pacifastacus gambelii  
 

Prohibited Crustaceans 

Common Name Scientific Classification Comments 

Asian Shore Crab Hemigrapsus sanguineus  

Chinese Mitten Crab Eriocheir sinensis  

European Green Crab Carcinus maenas  

Fishook Water Flea Cercopagis pengoi  

Killer Shrimp Dikerogammarus villosus  

Marbled Crayfish Procambarus virginalis  

Marron Crayfish Cherax tenuimanus  

Redclaw Crayfish Cherax quadricarinatus  

Rusty Crayfish Orconectes rusticus  

Signal Crayfish Pacifastacus leniusculus  

Spiny Water Flea Bythotrephes longimanus  

Yabby Crayfish Cherax destructor  

All crustacean species that are not listed as noncontrolled, controlled, or prohibited are presumed prohibited 
 

  


	1 - 11 November 28 2023 Agenda
	2 - 11-28-2023 Action Log
	3 - 9-21-2023 Wildlife Board Minutes DRAFT
	4 - Summary of Motions
	6 - 2023 Memo West Desert, Deep Creek elk unit status
	7 - Aquatics Species Classification Table. 3c-1. Oct 2023 RL

